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FILED IN OFFICE
MAY 20 201
DEPUTY CLERK SUPERIOR COURT ] |i
IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNTY —— tmier | |
STATE OF GEORGIA
WILLIAM M. WINDSOR, ) {
Plaintiff ) :
)
v, )  CASENO.
) .
James N. Hatten, Anniva Sanders, J. White, )  ZJ0// V3 0097/
B. Gutting, Margaret Callier, B. Grutby, ) ,
Douglas J. Mincher, Jessica Birnbaum, )
Judge William S. Duffey, Judge Orinda D. ) _
Evans, Judge Julie E. Camnes, John Ley )
Judge Joel F. Dubina, Judge Ed Carnes, )
Judge Rosemary Barkett, Judge Frank M. )
Hull, Jane Doe 1, Jane Doe 2, Jane Doe 3, )
Jane Doe 4, Jane Doe 5, John Doe 1, )
John Doe 2, and Does 8 TO 1000, )
Defendants. )
)

VERIFIED COMPLAINT

William M. Windsor (“Windsor or “Plaintiff) hereby files this VERIFIED ‘
COMPLAINT. Windsor shows the Court as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This Court has an obligation to citizens such as Windsor to “insure
justice to all...” So Says the Preamble to the Georgia Constitution, and this is 1
emphasized in the Bill of Rights to the Georgia Constitution. Windsor has been |
denied justice through the efforts of what he believes a jury will declare to be in

violation of the Georgia RICO statutes.
EXHIBIT

A

Sk
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2. Article ], Section I, Paragraph I of the Georgia Constitution provides

that “No person shall be deprived of life, liberty, or property except by due process

-of law.” Article ], Section I, Paragraph II of the Georgia Constitution provides that
“Protection to person and property is the paramount duty of government and shall
be impartial and complete. No person shall be denied the equal protection of the
laws.” Article I, Section I, Paragraph IX of the Georgia Constitution provides that
“The people have the right to assemble peaceably for their common good and to
apply by petition or remonstrance to those vested with the powers of government
for redress of grievances.” Article I, Section I, Paragraph XII of the Georgia
Constitution provides that “No person shall be deprived of the right to prosecute or
defend, either in person or by an attorney, that person's own cause in any of the
courts of this state.”

3.  Windsor has been denied these rights by people operating corruptly in
Fulton County, Georgia. Abuses have been committed by the Defendants. All
happen to be employees or units of the U.S. Government, but their jobs and
functions are secondary to the fact that they are breaking the law right here in
Fulton County.

4.  Anonline legal dictionary defines corrupt as “having an unlawful or

evil motive; especially characterized by improper and usually unlawful conduct
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intended to secure a benefit for oneself or another.” This description properly
defines the Defendants.

5. The actions of Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge William S. Duffey,
Judge Julie E. Carnes, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Judge Ed Carnes, Judge Rosemary
Barkett, Judge Frank M. Hull, and the employees of the courts and offices of the
. Clerk of the Court of both the Northern District of Georgia and the Eleventh
Circuit bring shame on the legal system. These Defendants have conspired to
violate the law and the rights of Windsor and others.

6.  This civil action is about the most fundamental legal issues that exist:
justice; honesty; fair play; equal protection; due process; Constitutional protections;
the right to a fair trial before an impartial judge; the right to honest, law-abiding,
impartial clerks of the courts; the requirement that witnesses, attorneys, judges, and
government employees tell the truth; the requirement that witnesses, attomeys,
judges, and government employees do not violate the laws of the state and the United
States, abuse litigants, and commit a variety of offenses.

7. District Court judges in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”) ignore the facts; invent their own facts; ignore the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“FRCP”), the Local Rules, and the Federal Rules

of Evidence (“FRE”); ignore the law; ignore applicable case law; cite erroneous case
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law; commit perjury by making statements that they know to be false in their orders;
violate parties’ rights in any way they can; commit obstruction of justice; deny access
to the courts; and trample the Constitutional rights of litigants without a thought.
They manipulate the judicial system to deprive parties such as Windsor of their
legal and Constitutional rights. They commit criminal acts without a thought.

8. Appellate Court judges in the United States Court of Appeals for the
Eleventh Circuit (“Eleventh Circiit”) ignore the facts; ignore the points of error of
appellants; ignore the law; ignore applicable case law; cite erroneous case law; issue
short, inadequate decisions; commit obstruction of justice; deny access to the courts;
do whatever it takes to support their friends at the District Courts; and trample the
Constitutional rights of litigants.

9.  The judicial system supports this dishonesty and illegality. The
“system” denies any form of valid recourse for an aggrieved citizen. The Judicial
Council ignores valid complaints and claims there is no proof when there is plenty.
Aggrieved citizens have no recourse. Since the Supreme Court isn’t really in the
business of correcting errors by the lower courts, the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh
Circuit combine to have tyrannical power over citizens of Georgia.

10.  The Chief Judges of N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit have ignored the

wrongdoing of their fellow judges. Windsor wrote to them to complain. Windsor
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was ignored. These judges support the wrongdoing, and they actively participate in
the wrongdoing.

11.  Windsor’s only recourse is with the state of Georgia. The federal
courts in Atlanta are controlled by people who are no better than gangsters, and
their mission is to protect one another and deny justice to citizens like Windsor.

12.  This Court and a jury of Fulton County citizens must protect Windsor.
It is an obligation mandated by the Georgia Constitution, the laws of Georgia, and
federal statutes as well.

PARTIES

13, William M. Windsor (“Windsor” or “Plaintiff”) is a resident of Cobb
County, Georgia and a citizen of the United States with his residence at 3924
Lower Roswell Road, Marietta, GA 30068. Windsor has been a defendant in
MIST-1 and the BOGUS ACTION, and is Plaintiff in MIST-2 and this action.

14.  Mr. James N. Hatten (“Mr. Hatten”) is subject to jurisdiction and
venue in this Court. Mr. Hatten may be served at its place of business, ¢/o Clerk of
the Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Cqurthouse, 75
Spring St, NW, 22™ Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.

15.  Miss Anniva Sanders (“Miss Sanders”) is subject to jurisdiction and

venue in this Court. Miss Sanders may be served at her place of business, c/o
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Clerk of the Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States
Courthouse, 75 Spring St, NW, 22™ Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.
16.  Ms. J. White (“Ms. White”) is subject to jurisdiction and venue in this
Court. Ms. White may be served at her place of business, c/o Clerk of the Court,
Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75 Spring St, l
NW, 22" Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303. | |

17.  Ms. B. Gutting (“Ms. Gutting™) is subject to jurisdiction and venue in
this Court. Ms. Gutting may be served at her place of business, c/o Clerk of the .
Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75 Spring
St, NW, 22 Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303,

18.  Ms. Margaret Callier (“Ms. Callier”) is subject to jurisdiction and
venue in this Court. Ms. Callier may be served at her place of business, ¢/o Clerk
of the Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75
Spring St, NW, 22™ Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.

19.  B. Grutby (“Grutby”) is subject to jurisdiction and venue in this .
Court. Grutby may be served at place of business, c/o Clerk of the Court, Richard
B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75 Spring St, NW, 22"

Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.

20.  Mr. Douglas J. Mincher (“Mr. Mincher”) is subject to jurisdiction and
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venue in this Court. Mr, Mincher may be served at his place of business, c/o Clerk
of the Court, Richard B. Russell Federal Building & United States Courthouse, 75
Spring St, NW, 22" Floor, Atlanta, GA 30303.

21.  Ms. Jessica Birnbaum (“Ms. Birnbaum”) is subjec-t-to jurisdiction and |
venue in this Court. Her place of business is United States District Court, 1721
Richard B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, 75 Spring Street, SW,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303.

22, Judge William S. Duffey, Jr. (“Judge Duffey™) is subject to
jurisdiction and venue in this Court. His place of business is United States District i
Court, 1721 Richard B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, 75 Spring
Street, SW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia 30303. Judge Duffey is a federal
judge operating in Fulton County, Georgia, and he has been presiding over Civil
Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD (“BOGUS ACTION”). He has also been presiding
over Civil Action 1:09-CV-02027-WSD (“MIST-2"). Service against Defendant
Judge Duffey can be perfected via personal service at the foregoing address.

23.  Judge Orinda D. Evans (“Judge Evans”) is subject to jurisdiction and
venue in this Court. Her place of business is United States District Court, Richard
B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, Suite 1988 - 75 Spring Street,

SW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia 30303. Judge Evans is a federal judge
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operating in Fulton County, Georgia and she is somehow a “party” to the BOGUS
ACTION. She is presiding in one civil action involving Windsor — Civil Action
1:06-CV-0714-ODE (“MIST-1”). Service against Defendant Evans can be
perfected via personal service at the foregoing address.

24,  Judge Julie E. Carnes (“Judge Julie Carnes”) is subject to jurisdiction
and venue in this Court. Her place of business is ﬁnited States District Court,
2167 Richard B. Russell Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, 75 Spring Street,
SW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia 30303. Judge Julie Carnes is the Chief
Judge for the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia
operating in Fulton County, Georgia. Service against Defendant Judge Julie
Carnes can be perfected via personal service at the foregoing address.

25.  Judge Joel F. Dubina (“Judge Dubina™) is subject to jurisdiction and
venue in this Court. His place of business is United States Court of Appeals for the
Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia 30303. .
Judge Dubina is the Chief Judge for the United States Court of Appeals for the
Eleventh Circuit Court operating in Fulton County, Georgia. Service against,
Defendant Judge Dubina can be perfected via personal service at the foregoing
address.

26. Judge Ed Carnes (“Judge Ed Carnes™) is subject to the jurisdiction and
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venue in this Court. His place of business is United States Court of Appeals for the
Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia 30303.
Service against Defendant Judge Ed Carnes can be perfected via personal service
at the foregoing address.

27.  Judge Rosemary Barkett (“Judge Barkett”) is subject to the
jurisdiction and venue in this Court. Her place of business is United States Court
of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Fulton
County, Georgia 30303. Service against Defendant Judge Barkeﬁ can be
perfected via personal service at the foregoing address.

28.  Judge Frank M. Hull (“Judge Hull”} is subject to jurisdiction and
venue in this Court. Her place of business is United States Court of Appeals for
the Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia
30303. Service against Defendant Judge Hull can be perfected via personal service
at the foregoing address.

29. John Ley (“Mr. Ley”) is subject to jurisdiction and venue in this
Court. Service against Defendant Mr. Ley can be perfected via personal service at
his place of business, John Ley, Clerk of the Court, United States Court of Appeals
for the Eleventh Circuit, 56 Forsyth Street, NW, Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia

30303.
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30. Jane Doe 1 was a Law Clerk to Judge Orinda D. Evans in 2006. The
true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been asqertained.

31. Jane Doe 2 was a Law Clerk to Judge Orinda D. Evans in 2007. The
true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.

32. Jane Doe 3 was a Law Clerk to Judge Orinda D. Evans in 2008. The
true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.

33. Jane Doe 4 was a Law Clerk to Judge Orinda D. Evans in 2009. The
true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Co.urt to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.

34. Jane Doe 5 was a Law Clerk to Judge Orinda D. Evans in 2010. The

true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said

10
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Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.
35.  John Doe 1 was a Law Clerk to Judge William S. Duffey in 2009.
The true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.
36. John Doe 2 was a Law Clerk to Judge William 3. Duffey in 2010. .
The true name of this Defendant is unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said
Defendant by such fictitious name. Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend
this Verified Complaint to include the proper name when it has been ascertained.
37. The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate,
associate, or otherwise, of other defendants DOES 8 through 1000, inclusive, are
unknown to Windsor, who therefore sues said Defendants by such fictitious names.
Windsor will seek leave of this Court to amend this Verified Complaint to include
their proper names and capacities when they have been ascertained. Windsor is
informed and believes, and based thereon alleges, that each of the fictitiously
named Defendants participated in and are in some manner responsible for the acts
described in this Verified Complaint and the damage resulting therefrom. These

DOES will include court staff and other members of the federal judiciary in

11
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Atlanta, Georgia.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

38.  This Court has jurisdiction over the Defendants and over the subject
matter of this action. An actual controversy exists within this Court’s jurisdiction.

39. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under the Georgia
Constitution; O.C.G.A. § 9-4-1, et seq.

40.  Pursuant to O.C.G.A. §9-10-30 venue is proper in the Fulton County
Superior Court as Defendants are operating within the geographical boundaries of
that Court and equitable relief is sought against these Defenclants.

41.  Pursuant to O.C.G.A. §9-10-31v venue is proper in the Fulton County
Superior Court as Judge Orinda D. Evans and other Defendants reside in Fulton

County, Georgia.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND
42. William M. Windsor is allegedly a Defendant in a so-called Civil
Action No. 1:09-CV-01543-WSD in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia (“BOGUS ACTION”). The BOGUS ACTION
appeared out of nowhere. The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (Rules 3 and 4)

require a petition and issuance and service of a summons to create a civil action.

12
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None of this was done in this “matter.” The Court Docket includes no complaint
and no summons. A true and correct copy of the Court Docket is Exhibit 1.
Windsor has been “hijacked” and forced to be a part of a proceeding that is invalid,
yet no one in the federal court system will do anything about it.

43.  Judge Evans created the BOGUS ACTION, yet her name does not
appear on the caption, and she is not listed as a party. There are many other
irregularities with the BOGUS ACTION. Critical records are listed in the docket
with no docket number. Critical records submitted to the Clerk of the Court or to
Judge Duffey are missing from the docket. Appeals have disappeared. Docket
entries have been made with no notice to Windsor. A judgment and writ of
execution were issued by the Clerk of the Court without any authorization. The
Clerk of the Court ignores letters from Windsor and has refused to provide him
with any subpoenas, which a pro se party must have. The Clerk has refused to
provide Windsor copies of his public court records. The reason all of this and
more has been done is obstruction of jvustice to protect Judge Evans and those that
she seeks to protect from disclosure of documents that Windsor believes will prove -
illegal activity.

44,  The BOGUS ACTION began by Judge Duffey branding Windsor as

“scurrilous and irresponsible” for attempting to obtain two documents that were

13
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filed under seal in MIST-1 on February 15, 2007 (MIST-1 Doc.168) that have been
hidden by Judge Evans. Windsor is confident that these documents will prove
fraud and that Judge Evans committed obstruction of justice in Civil Action 1:06-
CV-0714-ODE because Windsor obtained the documents that should have been
filed from the other parties to the agreements. Upon information and belief, Judge
Duffey has ignored the facts, ignored the law, cited inapplicable law, has
committed perjury and other criminal acts, and has done everything possible to
protect Judge Evans and damage Windsor. Windsor has extensive proof of this
and more.

45.  Upon information and belief, Judge Duffey’s only consideration in the
BOGUS ACTION is to violate Windsor’s rights every chance he gets.

46.  Windsor has had approximately $1,500,000.00 “stolen” from him in
the guise of lawsuits (MIST-1 and the BOGUS ACTION).

47. Judge Duffey and Judge Evans violate the Local Civil Rules for the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“N.D.Ga.”), the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Code of Judicial Conduct, and civil and
criminal statutes routinely.

48. MIST-1, the BOGUS ACTION, and MIST-2 have been travesties of

justice.

14



Case 1:11-cv-01923-TWT Document 1-1 Filed 06/13/11 Page 15 of 61

49.  Non-party Barbara Windsor (“BGW”) became involved in the
BOGUS ACTION through a request for production of financial documents from
her, a non-party, including her own separate property, which is protected by Article
I, Paragraph XXVII of the Georgia Constitution.

50. BGW has been advised that she requires surgery for a prolapsed
uterous, rectocele, and related issues. A hysterectomy will be performed, and her
uterous and ovaries will be removed. An assortment of other procedures will be
done to repair problems in the vagina and rectum. Dr. Dobson says BGW will be
out of commission for six weeks.

51. Prior to being diagnosed, BGW developed a severe case of anxiety.
She has been seeing a psychiatrist, Dr. Brian Teliho, and he has begun medication.
BGW has trouble tolerating medication, so she is very slowly having the dosage
increased. Thus far, the medication has not had any meaningful impact on the
anxiety. She has trouble sleeping, shakes much of the time, cries a lot, and is in a
state of panic. Her irrational fear is that Judge Duffey will put her in jail. She has
done nothing to be put in jail, but that is her fear. She also fears that someone will
kill her because of Windsor’s efforts to expose judicial corruption.

52. BGW is physically and mentally incapable of handling matters

relating to the BOGUS ACTION. Windsor has been unable to afford an attorney

15
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or find one who would take action against corrupt judges. BGW has asked
Windsor to handle the matter for her. Judge Duffey has refused to allow Windsor
to help his wife in what Windsor believes is a violation of Georgia law. This is
detailed in Fulton County Superior Court Case No. 2011CV200857 (“POWER OF
ATTORNEY ACTION™).

53.  On June 3, 2009, the BOGUS ACTION was manufactured by
unknown people with the office of the Clerk of the Court and others. (See Exhibit
1 Doc.1.)' It began as 1:09-CV-220-WSD and became 1:09-CV-01543-WSD on
June 10, 2009. (See Exhibit 1 Doc. Entry between 8 and 9.)

54. Upon information and belief, the BOGUS ACTION has been the
work of Judge Evans, Judge Duffey, Judges Ed Carnes, Judge Barkett, and Judge
Hull to deny Windsor the ability to see two documents filed under seal by Judge
Evans that prove criminal acts by her and the Plaintiffs in MIST-1 and the BOGUS
ACTION.

55. The only evidence befare the court in June 2009 consisted of sworn
affidavits under penalty of perjury before a notary by Windsor, but on June 30,
2009, Judge Duffey entered an order declaring Windsor to be “scurrilous and

irresponsible.” He made findings of fact that were contrary to the only evidence

UDoc. Is used as the abbreviation for Docket entries.

16
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before him. (Exhibit 1 Doc.32.) Upon information and belief, he did this to
obstruct justice and damage Windsor.

56.  On September 3, 2009, Judge Duffey denied Windsor’s motions
pertaining to reconsideration and venue. (Exhibit 1 Doc.42.) A review of the
Docket will reveal that Judge Duffey rules for Judge Evans and the Plaintiffs in the
BOGUS ACTION and against Windsor and BGW in disregard for the law, the
facts, the rules, the requirement of impartiality, fairness, etc.

57. On September 15, 2009, Windsor filed a notice of appeal. (Exhibit |
Doc.44.)

58.  On February 26, 2010, Judge Ed Carnes, Judge Barkett, énd Judge
| Hull of the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals dismissed Windsor’s appeal as
“frivolous as briefed” and granted sanctions. (Exhibit 1 Doc.52.) There was
nothing remotely frivolous about the appeal. The judges of the Eleventh Circuit
had been shielding Judge Evans for years and ruling against Windsor when the
facts and the law meant that Windsor should have prevailed at the appellate court.

59. OnMay 7, 2010, Judge Ed Carnes, Judge Barkett, and Judge Hull of
the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals denied to even allow Windsor’s information
timely provided in response to the statement of costs by the Plaintiffs in the

BOGUS ACTION to be filed. (Exhibit 1 Doc. 54.) The judges claim it exceeded a

17
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page limit, yet there is no rule providing a page limit for the information that
Windsor provided. The judges denied all other Windsor motions without
consideration. Judges also entered an order restricting Windsor’s ability on filings
with the Eleventh Circuit. Windsors’ appeals are held for months for no good
reason. Windsor is denied the ability to file motions. The judges ignore
emergency motions that are supposed to be addressed in five days or less. The
judges ignore the points of error and do not even address them. In Windsor’s
opinion, the actions of the judges of the Eleventh Circuit are nothing but a racket.
60. On June 16, 2010, Mr. Hatten, or someone working with him, issued a
Writ of Execution in the BOGUS ACTION. (See Exhibit 1 between Doc. 54 and
55.) Windsor received no notice whatsoever of this from the Clerk, the Eleventh
Circuit, or the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia.
The Docket shows no record of notice. A Motion for Reconsideration and a
Petition for Rehearing En Banc filed by Windsor were pending with the Eleventh
Circuit at the time the Writ of Execution was issued. The Writ of Execution
should not have been issued without authorization, without notice to Windsor, or
while appeals were pending. Mr. Hatten refused to respond to Windsor, and the

courts ignored it.

18
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64.  OnJuly 7, 2010, Windsor filed a timely motion for an emergency
protective order to quash interrogatories and requests for production of documents.
(Exhibit 1 Doc. 60.)

65. From July 2010 to January 2011, Windsor filed various motions for
extensions and stays due to medical problems. Windsor had four eye surgeries
between July 2010 and January 2011 and was unable to read for much of that time.

66.  From July 6, 2010 to February 25, 2011, Windsor wrote 16 letters to
MOTM and Steamboat’s attorney (“Anderson”) about the discovery requests.

67. From July 7, 2010 to November 3, 2010, Judge Duffey ignored
motions that had been filed.

68.  On September 23, 2010, Windsor had a courier deliver a new civil
action to Mr, Hatten’s office to be filed. (A true and correct copy of the cover
letter is Exhibit 3.)

69. On September 23, 2010, Windsor had a courier deliver five motions to
Mr. Hatten's office for filing. (A true and correct copy of the cover letter is
Exhibit 4.) The courier with Courier Connection presented the documents to Miss
Sanders. Though there was no restriction of any type on filing in the BOGUS

ACTION, she refused to file them. Miss Sanders had no legal basis to do this.

20
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70.  The courier called Windsor from the courthouse to advise him of the
refusal. Windsor immediately called and spoke to Miss Sanders. She told
Windsor that she had been advised “by Chambers” to refuse to file the motions.
Miss Sanders ultimately told Windsor that he needed to call the Chambers of Judge -
Duffey.

71, Windsor called the Chambers of Judge Duffey and spoke to Ms.
Birnbaum who advised him that Judge Duffey issued an “oral order” requiring that
Windsor first seek request fori specific approval before filing anything. The excuse
was that Windsor had requested a stay due to his eye problems, and the case was
closed. As the court Docket shows (Exhibit 1), there was no order granting a stay,
and the Plaintiffs were allowed to file Docket Nqs. 55, 56, 75,76, 77, 82, 83, and
84 between June 17 and September 3, 2010 after the case was closed, while
Windsor was having eye surgeries, and without any requirement to request specific
approval to file. The Docket also shows that Windsor’s motions for stay Doc.63
(July 19, 2010), Doc.79 (August 6, 2010), Doc.80 (August 26, 2010) were ignored
by Judge Duffey. This is but one of many examples of bias and misconduct by
Judge Duffey.

72.  Windsor checked the Docket on Pacer on September 23, 2010, and

there was no such oral order.
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73.  When the cburier returned the motions to Windsor on September 23,
he said that when he presented the documents to Miss Sanders, she made a
telephone call. She then informed the courier that she was unable to file the
motions on “orders from Chambers.”

74.  Upon information and belief, Miss Sanders took it upon herself to call
Ms. Birnbaum in Judge Duffey’s Chambers seeking to block Windsor from filing.
Judge Duffey then issued an “oral order” after the fact to justify the refusal by Miss
Sanders.

75.  On September 23, 2010, Windsor had an affidavit from BGW
delivered to the Clerk for filing. (A true and correct copy of the cover letter is
Exhibit 5.)

76. The alleged September 23, 2010 ORAL ORDER was entered on the
Docket on September 24, 2010, It required that Windsor cease filing motions and
file “requests for specific approval” that Judge Duffey would approve before
motions could be filed. The order plainly shows that it did not apply to BGW.
(Exhibit 1 unnumbered but dated 09/24/2010.) The ORAL ORDER says nothing
about Mrs. Windsor (BGW).

77.  Judge Duffey also issued an oral order on September 23, 2010 in

MIST-2 (the same day Windsor’s motions were refused by Miss Sanders in the

22
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BOGUS ACTION) in which he made absolutely false statements, claiming
Windsor failed to submit required information to him, (Exhibit 6 is a true and
correct copy of this order.) Windsor absolutely sent the required information, and
more, to Judge Duffey. Windsor has copies of all of these documents and proof of
delivery of most. Upon information and belief, one or more of the following took
place: Judge Duffey intentionally lied in the September 23, 2010 order to damage
Windsor; Miss Sanders failed to send information to Judge Duffey that was
received by the Clerk; Ms. Birnbaum concealed or destroyed emails, letters, and/or
deliveries from Windsor. Judge Duffey used this false assertion to dismiss
. Windsor’s case in MIST-2.

78.  Windsor filed a notice of appeal in MIST-2 on September 23, 2010.

79.  On September 23, 2010, Windsor had a courier deliver a letter to Mr.
Hatten’s office requesting signed subpoenas. (A true and correct copy of this letter
is Exhibit 7.) No response was ever received.

80. On September 24, 2010, Windsor sent a notice of appeal on MIST-2
to Mr, Hatten’s office for filing. (A true and correct copy of the cover letter is

Exhibit 8.)
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81.  On October 6, 2010, BGW was served with a subpoena by MOTM
and Steamboat to produce documents on October 18, 2010. (Exhibit 9 is a true and
correct copy of the subpoena.)

82. Windsor filed a Notice of Request for Specific Approval to file
Motion for Stay on October 12, 2010. (Exhibit 1 Doc.92.) (A true and correct copy
of the cover letter is Exhibit 10.)

83. On October 18, 2010, Windsor had a courier deltver a letter to Mr.
Hatten informing him that a writ of execution was illegally issued. (A true and
correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 11.) Mr. Hatten never responded.

84, Windsor filed an Emergency Motion for Conference on October 18,
2010 asking that the subpoenas, stay, and appeal be addressed. (Exhibit 1 Doc.93.)
Judge Duffey never granted a conference.

85. BGW filed a timely Motion for Protective Order and Motion to Quash
Subpoena on October 18, 2010. (Exhibit 1 Doc. 96.)

86.  On October 22, 2010, Windsor sent an Amended Notice of Appeal to
the Clerk for filing. (A true and correct copy of the cover letter is Exhibit 12.)

87. On October 22, 2010, Windsor had a new civil action delivered to the
Mr. Hatten's office. All of the necessary paperwork was in order, and cash for the

filing fee was hand-delivered to the Filing Clerk by a courier with Courier
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Connection. Windsor sent a letter with the filing asking the Filing Clerk to call
him with the case number and to advise when the signed Summons’ forms would
be ready for pickup. Windsor also stressed the urgency of his Motion for
Temporary Restraining Order and asked that a hearing be set immediately. (A true
and correct copy of the cover letter is Exhibit 13.)

88. Qn October 22, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Judge Julie Carnes. (A
true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 14.)

89. Because he had not received a call from the Filing Clerk, Windsor
called at 1:25 pm on October 25, 2010 and spoke to Miss Sanders. Windsor asked
Miss Sanders for the case number and whether the Summons’ forms were ready.

90. Miss Sanders told Windsor: “We haven’t filed anything. We are
waiting for judges’ orders.” Windsor asked: “What judges?” Miss Sanders asked
Windsor to hold. After ten minutes of silence, Ms. Callier came on the line at 1:35
pm. She said she was Operations Manager. She told Windsor: “Your civil action
has not been filed yet. There are people ahead of you. I don’t know when it will
be done.” Windsor asked who the judges are that Miss Sanders was waiting to get
orders from. She replied: “I don’t know anything about what Miss Sanders did or
said.” Windsor tried to find out what was going on, but Ms. Callier would not

provide any information. She promised to call back before the end of the day.

25



Case 1:11-cv-01923-TWT Document 1-1 Filed 06/13/11 Page 25 of 61

91. At4:56 pm, Ms. Callier called Windsor to advise: “A determination is
being made as to whether the new complaint complies with previous orders by
Judge Duffey and Judge Evans.” She said “a judge” was looking at it. She would
not say whether that was Judge Duffey or Judge Evans, both named parties in the
new complaint. She said she couldn’t say who was looking at it. She would
provide no other information.

92.  Upon information and belief, one or both of Judge Duffey and Judge
Evans interfered with Windsor’s filing of the civil action. Both Judge Duffey and
Judge Evans are named parties in the civil action, and they had no business
interfering with a lawsuit in which they are defendants. There was no court order
providing that there be any screening of complaints filed by Windsor. Windsor's
right to petition for redress of grievances was denied. Upon information and
belief, Ms. Birmbaum spoke with Miss Sanders and helped orchestrate the refusal
to file.

93.  On October 25, 2010, Windsor sent a request for two subpoenas to
Mr. Hatten’s office. (A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 15.) Windsor

never received a response.
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94.  On October 25, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
asking for the status of the civil action sent for filing a few days before. (A true
and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 16.) Windsor did not receive a response.

95.  On October 25, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to each of the Defendants
in the action that he sent to Mr. Hatten’s office for filing on October 22, 2010 --
United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, James N. Hatten,
Judge William S. Duffey, Ir., Judge Orinda D. Evans, Judge Joel F. Dubina, Judge
Rosemary Barkett, Judge Edward Earl Carnes, Judge James Larry Edmondson, Judge
Frank M. Hull, Judge Stanley Marcus, Judge William H. Pryor, Jr., United States
Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit, United States of America, and Cobb
County. (A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 17.)

96. On October 26, 2010, Windsor had a new civil action delivered to Mr.
Hatten’s office. All of the necessary paperwork was in order, and cash for the
filing fee was hand-delivered to the Filing Clerk by a courier with Courier
Connection. Windsor sent a letter with the filing asking the Filing Clerk to call
him with the case number and to advise when the signed Summons’ forms would
be ready for pickup. Windsor also stressed the urgency of his Motion for
Temporary Restraining Order and asked that a hearing be set immediately. (A true

and correct copy of the cover letter is Exhibit 18.)
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97.  On October 26, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to each of the Defendants
in the action that he sent to Mr. ﬁaﬁen’s office for filing on October 26, 2010 —
Anniva Sanders, Jessica Birnbaum, United States District Court for the Northern
District of Georgia, James N. Hatten, Judge William 8. Duffeyi (A true and correct
copy of this letter is Exhibit 19.)

98. On October 26, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Judge Julie Carnes. (A
true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 20.) Judge Julie Carnes never
responded to anything.

99.  On November 3, 2010, MOTM and Steamboat filed a Respoﬁse to
BGW’s Motion for Protective Order and Motion to Quash Subpeona (Doc.96).
Note that they filed a Response, not a request to file a response. (Exhibit 1 Doc.
98.)

100. On November 3, 2010, Judge Duffey issued an order denying BGW's
Motion for Protective Order claiming BGW was bound by the September 23, 2010
order. (Exhibit 1 D0c.99.) The easily determined fact by anyone -- that the
September 23, 2010 did not apply to BGW -- was brought to Judge Duffey’s
attention, but he ignored the facts. There was no order that placed restrictions on

BGW. (Exhibit 21 is a true and correct copy of the November 3, 2010 order.)
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Judge Duffey maliciously obstructed justice by refusing to grant BGW the legal
protections she was owed due to filing a Motion for Protective Order. |

10]. On November 4, 2010, Windsor filed a request for specific approval
to ask that Judge Duffey confirm through an order that the BOGUS ACTION was
stayed due to pending appeals. Windsor made répeated efforts to get the stay
acknowledged because the case law is crystal clear that Judge Duffey had lost
jurisdiction.

102. On November 5, 2010, Windsor filed a notice of appeal. (Exhibit |
Doc. 103.)

103. On November 5, 2010, BGW sent a notice of appeal to Mr. Hastten’s
office with the required filing fee of $455 cash. The appeal said: “This appeal is
necessary due to the violation of ... Constitutional rights by Judge Duffey;
claiming filing restrictions on Barbara Windsor when there were none; wrongful
dismissal of Barbara’s filings; denial of Barbara’s access to the Court; and abuse of
discretion by Judge Duffey.”

104. On November 9, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
stating that the lawsuits must be filed immediately. The letter was copied to Judge

Julie Carnes. (A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 22.)
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105. On November 9, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Judge Julie Carmnes. (A
true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 23.)

106. On November 11, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.
(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 24.) There was never a response.

107. On November 16, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.
(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 25.) There was never a response.

108. On November 17, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten. (A true
and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 26.) There was never a response.

109. On November 18, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.
(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 27.) There was never a resiaonse.

110. On November 18, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr, Hatten. (A true
and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 28.) Mr. Hatten’s clerks were filing
amended notices of appeal as new appeals and were showing them invalid due to
non-payment of the $455 fee. This is contrary to the way the Clerk’s Office
operates, and upon information and belief, this procedure has been maintained
against Windsor but not against others.

111. On November 19, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.

(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 29.) There was never a response.
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112. On November 22, 2010, Judge Evans entered an order in MIST-1
saying Windsor could not file lawsuits. Windsor’s unfiled complaints were
returned by the Clerk’s office after over a month. (A true and correct copy of this
order is Exhibit 30.) Judge Evans’ order denies Windsor the rights under the
FRCP to correct miscarriages of justice through Rule 60(b) and Rule 60(d) actions.
One of the complaints that Judge Evans instructed Mr. Hatten’s office to refuse to
file was a Rule 60(d) and independent action in equity to set aside orders and
judgments due to fraud upon the court. Judge Evans’ order denied lawsuits filed
against her as a defendant. Judge Evans’ order constitutes obstruction of justice.

113. On November 29, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.
(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 31.) There was never a response.

114. On November 30, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office.
(A true and correct copy of this letter is Exhibit 32.) There was never a response.

115. On December 2, 2010, BGW sent a Notice of Filing of Requést for
Specific Approval to file Motion for Order Confirming Stay and the Request for
Specific Approval to file Motion for Order Confirming Stay to Mr. Hatten’s office.
The documents were received by Ms. Gutting. The cover letter received by Ms.
Gutting warned the recipient that failure to file the documents immediately would

be a violation of BGW’s legal rights. Ms. Gutting ignored the warning, and the
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documents disappeared for 68 days. Exhibit 33 is a true and correct copy of the
cover letter. Exhibit 34 is a true and correct copy of the delivery confirmation
from Courier Connection. -

116. The Court Dacket in the BOGUS ACTION shows that Notice of
Filing of Request for Specific Approval to file Motion for Order Confirming Stay
and the Request for Specific Approval to file Motion for Order Confirming Stay
were not filed on December 2, 2010 or any time in December or January. 68 days
later on February 7, 2011, the documents were finally filed. Exhibit 1 is a true and
correct copy of the Court Docket; see Docket #123 and 124. Upon information
and belief, the employees of Mr. Hatten, Ms. Birnbaum, and Judge Duffey
conspired to deprive BGW of this filing for 68 days.

117. On December 6, 2010, Judge Duffey entered an order denying various
requests filed by Windsor and BGW, including BGW’s request for approval to file
the motion for protective order. (Exhibit 1 Doc.109.)

118. On December 6, 2010, Windsor filed a request for a conference.
(Exhibit 1 Doc.110.) Exhibit 35 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter.

119. On December 6, 2010, Windsor filed a Notice of Appeal. (Exhibit 1

Doc.113.) Exhibit 36 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter.
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120. On December 17, 2010, Judge Carmnes, Judge Wilson, and Judge Hull
issued an order that unfairly and improperly barred Windsor from filing any
motions until after a frivolity review. This denies Windsor timely consideration of
anything with the Eleventh Circuit. This is obstruction of justice and denial of due
process. These restrictions were ordered without notice and an opportunity to be
heard as extensive case law requires. Exhibit 60 is a true and correct copy of this
order.

121. On December 29, 2010, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
about payment for appeals. Exhibit 37 is a true and correct copy of the letter.

122. While non-parties have the absolute right to file an appeal of orders
relating to discovery, the District Court Clerk refused to file BGW's November 5,
2010 notice of appeal. The U.S. Treasury sent a refund check for $455 to BGW.

123. On February 8, 2011, Windsor filed a request for specific approval.
(Exhibit 1 Doc.126.) Exhibit 38 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter.

124. On February 8, 2011, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten about
payment for appeals. Exhibit 39 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter.

125. OnFebruary 9, 2011, Judge Duffey entered an order vacating Order

Doc. 109. (Exhibit 1 Doc. 125.) Upon information and belief, this was done to try
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to cover up the fact that Doc.123 and 124 had not been filed for 68 days after
receipt.

126. Windsor received the order from Judge Duffey on or about February
18,2011 expressing that Judge Duffey would not recognize the stay that Windsor
felt was in effect. Exhibit 40 is a true and correct copy of this order.

127. Windsor immediately wrote to Carl Hugo Anderson, the attorney for
MOTM and Steamboat, (“Anderson”) on February 18, 2011 stating that the
requested discovery would be provided since Judge Duffey was denying all of the
motions and was refusing to recognize the stay that Windsor felt existed due to the
appeal. Exhibit 41 is a true and correct copy of this letter. There was no response.
Windsor wrote Anderson again on February 24. There was no response. Windsor
wrote Anderson again on February 25. This was the sixteenth letter Windsor had
written between July and February about the discovery and the third one to arrange
the details. There was no response.

128. Then on February 25, 2011, MOTM and Steamboat filed a motion to
compel. (Exhibit | Doc.129.) It had been 79 days since Windsor last heard from
Plaintiffs’ Attorney Anderson on the matter; there had been at least nine (9) letters
from Windsor that were unanswered. Anderson violated Rule § of the Standing

Orders of Judge Duffey, and the motion also violated several terms in NDGa
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LR37.1. The Rule 37 Certificates filed by Anderson are false, misleading, and
violate the specific requirements. Anderson never called, emailed, faxed, or wrote
to Windsor to discuss filing a motion to compel.

129. On March 9, 2011, Windsor sent a letter to the Clel"k of the Court
requesting subpoenas. Exhibit 42 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter.
There was no response.

130. On March 11, 2011, Windsor filed a request for specific approval to
file a power of attorney. (Exhibit 1 Doc. 132.) Exhibit 43 is a true and correct
copy of this request.

131. On March 16, 2011, Judge Duffey entered an order refusing to allow a
motion for reconsideration to be filed. (Exhibit 1 Doc.134.) Exﬁibit 44 is a true and
correct copy of this order.

132. On March 16, 2011, Judge Duffey issued an order denying the request
for specific approval to file a motion with the power of attorney. (Exhibit 1
Doc.135.) Judge Duffey did not even allow the motion to be filed and issued a
ruling when all Windsor had been allowed to file was a two-page request to file a
motion. Exhibit 45 is a true and correct copy of this order. Judge Duffey’s order
cited case law that was not Georgia law and was not even from a federal court in

the Eleventh Circuit. The Docket will reveal that Judge Duffey has repeatedly
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issued substantive rulings against Windsor based upon 1 to 5-page requests rather
than allow the motions to be properly briefed and argued. This is obstruction of
justice,

133. According to Windsor’s research, Georgia law is quite clear that a
Power of Attorney may to be used as the Windsors planned. The model power of
attorney forms provided online use the wording that says the power of attorney
may be used for Windsor to file for his wife, BGW. \

134. On March 22, 2011, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
requesting subpoenas. Exhibit 46 is a true and correct copy of the letter. There
Was no response.

135. On April 11, 2011, Barbara Windsor sent a notice of appeal to Mr.
Hatten’s office. The documents were received by Miss Sanders. Exhibit 47 is a
true and correct copy of the cover letter and Notice of Appeal. Exhibit 48 is a true
and correct copy of the delivery confirmation from Courier Connection.

136. The Court Docket in the BOGUS ACTION shows that this notice of
appeal and motion were not filed. Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the Court
Docket. 44 days missing as of the filing of this Verified Cormplaint.

137. Judge Duffey entered an Order dated April 21, 2011 granting

Plaintiffs’ motion to compel. (Exhibit I Doc.152.) Exhibit 49 is a true and correct
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copy of this order. This Order contains absolutely false statements by Judge
Duffey (P.342, P.3, footnote 1, P.593). P.392 is an outrage; Windsor provided
absolute basis. P.3, footnote 1 is perjury by Judge Duffey and proof of corruption.
P.593 is a total outrage. Judge Duffey falsely and maliciously claims the
documents produced were “heavily redacted” when 68 pages were provided with
1/3 of one page redacted, consisting solely of social security numbers and account
numbers scattered throughout the 68 pages. The discovery requested includes the
Windsor’s social security numbers, all of the Windsor’s personal health records for
up to the past 11 years, account numbers and every financial detail with no
protective order whatsoever as to the use of this information and disclosure to the
public.

138. Judge Duffey ignored the FRCP, Local Rules, and case law. Judge
Duffey had no legal, factual, ethical, or moral basis to grant the motion to compel.
Judge Duffey has apparent plans to award attorneys’ fees to MOTM and
Steamboat despite the proven fact that Windsor and BGW had long since agreed to
provide the discovery and had provided a response to the discovery before Judge
Duffey entered the order granting the motion to compel. Judge Duffey did not
have jurisdiction. Judge Duffey failed to provide any legal authority to indicate

that the BOGUS ACTION is a valid civil action. Judge Duffey corruptly denied
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the rights of due process. Judge Duffey ignored most of the points in Windsor's
response to the motion to compel.

139. On April 21, 2011 Judge Duffey entered an Order direc_ting the Clerk
to return BGW’s Notice of Appeal that had been hidden and never docketed since
it was received on April 11, 2011. (Exhibit 1 Doc.151.) Exhibit 50 is a true and
correct copy of this order.

140. On April 28, 2011, BGW sent a notice of appeal and a request for
specific approval to file a motion for stay to Mr. Hatten’s office. This was the
April 11 submission with BGW’s signature added. The documents were received
by Ms. White. Exhibit 51 is a true and correct copy of the cover letter and Notice
of Appeal. Exhibit 52 is a true and correct copy of the delivery confirmation from
Courier Connection.,

141. The Court Docket in the BOGUS ACTION shows that this notice of
appeal and motion have not been filed. ’Exhibit 1 is a true and correct copy of the
Court Docket. 22 days missing as of the filing of this Verified Complaint. BGW
has presented Mr. Hatten’s office with three notices of appeal since November
2010, and none of these have been filed by the staff of the Clerk of the Court.
BGW has thus been denied the protection of an appeal and has been denied the

right to petition the Eleventh Circuit for relief from the wrongful actions of Judge
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Duffey. As aresult, BGW has now been forced to provide documents that her
appeal would have stayed.

142. OnMay 3, 2011, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
requesting subpoenas. Exhibit 53 is a true and correct copy of the letter. There
was no response.

143. On May 4, 2011, Judge Duffey expressed that he was not recognizing
a stay, and hé ordered BGW and Windsor to produce documents by May 13, 2011.
(Exhibit 1 Doc. 158.) He instructed Maid’s Attorney to document the amount of
money they had spent on legal fees to compel production. Exhibit 54 is a true and
correct copy of this order. Judge Duffey plans to award legal fees for the motion to
compel that was illegally filed after the Windsors had long since agreed to provide
the discovery.

144. On May 6, 2011, Windsor filed a request for specific approval to file a
motion for recusal. (Exhibit 1 Doc.161.) Judge Duffey denied the request to allow
Windsor to file his motion on May 9, 2011 (Exhibit 1 Doc.165). Judge Duffey has
no legal basis to deny a motion to recuse.

145. On May 6, 2011, Windsor sent a letter to Mr. Hatten’s office
requesting subpoenas. Exhibit 55 is a true and correct copy of the letter. There

was no response.
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146. On May 10, 2011, Windsor sent a notice of appeal and a request for
specific approval to file a motion for stay to Mr. Hatten’s office. The cover letter
is Exhibit 56. (Exhibit 1 Doc. 167.)

147. When Windsor submitted motions to be filed with the Eleventh
Circuit on May 10, 2011, the motions were returned saying there was no such
appeal. Exhibit 57 is a true and correct copy of the letter from the Eleventh Circuit
and copies of some of the pages to show the document presented for filing was an
Emergency Motion on the appeal filed that same date. Either the staff in the
District Court Clerk’s office never sent the appeal documents to the Eleventh
Circuit, or tfle staff in the Clerk’s Office at the Eleventh Circuit is lying.

148. Judge Duffey has accused Windsor of forgery. Windsor never forged
anything. Judge Duffey also seems to be accusing Windsor of the unauthorized
practice of law, but Windsor has done no such thing. Judge Duffey is planning to
schedule a hearing to address these issues, yet he has refused to grant Windsor the
due process protections provided by the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure that
Windsor demanded. Judge Duffey can and will do anything he wants to do, so this
Court needs to protect Windsor from the actions of this racketeer.

149. On May 10, 2011, Windsor filed criminal charges against 11 federal

judges in Fulton County. The Fulton County Grand Jury is currently considering
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the charges made by Windsor seeking criminal indictments against Judges Orinda
D. Evans, William S. Duffey, Dubina, Edmondson, Carnes, Barkett, Hull, Pryor,
Marcus, Black, and Tjoflat.

150. On May 12, 2011, Windsor was notified by a known radio talk show
host that a federal prisoner was approached by the U.S. government with a deal to
infiltrate organizations of people battling government corruption, and the
assassination of Windsor was mentioned.

151. On May 17, 2011 at 2:03 pm EDT, Windsor entered the Office of the
Clerk of the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, 75
Spring Street, 22" Floor, Atlanta, Fulton County Georgia 30303. Windsor
presented two letters to Chief Deputy Clerk Dougtas J. Mincher requesting to
| access court records, to inspect, and to copy in cases 1:09-CV-01543-WSD, 1:09-
CV-02027-WSD, and 1:06-CV-0714-ODE in the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Georgia. Exhibits 58 and 59 are true and correct copies of
the requests.

152. Mr. Mincher refused Windsor’s request to stamp Windsor’s copy of
the letters “Received.” Windsor was also denied access to any and all the records

in his cases after politely requesting access to the court records to inspect and to
copy.
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153. This is a clear violation of Windsor’s rights and the rules of the court.

154. Ms. White, Miss Sanders, Ms. Gutting, an unknown government
employee with Mr. Mincher, and a man who appeared to be a pro se party making
a filing with Miss Sanders all witnessed the interaction.

155. | On May 18, 2011, Windsor discovered that the appeal of BGW that
was sent to the clerk of the district court on April 28, 2011 had never been filed.
The Windsors discovered this when an Emergency Motion for Stay was returned
by the Eleventh Circuit claiming there was no appeal. Windsor has discovered that
documents presented to Mr. Hatten’s office for filing are not file stamped. Mr.
Hatten’s staff applies a post-it and then stamps the post-it. Upon information and
belief, this allows the judges and Mr. Hatten’s staff to avoid filing, change dates
when needed, and more. This is obstruction of justice and a violation of due
process. There is no order establishing such a procedure, and it certainly violates
the rules.

156. On May 19, 2011, Windsor filed Fulton County Superior Court Case
No. 2011CV200857, referenced and incorporated herein as if attached hereto. This
is a declaratory judgment action seeking to have the Superior Court declare that a
power of attorney in Georgia may give an agent the power to act for a party in

legal matters.
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157. Since 2006, federal court employees in Fulton County, Georgia have
conspired to damage Windsor, and a number of civil and criminal violations have
been committed.

158. Judge Evans began violating the law in 2006. Judge Duffey began
violating the law in 2009. The violations continue today. There are entirely too
many violations to begin to list them all in this Verified Complaint. This Court
and the jury should be shocked and appalled to learn what these racketeers have
done. |

159. Orders have been issued By Judge Evans and Judge Duffey that have
ignored the facts, ignored the law, cited erroneous case law, cited case law that
does not support the subject of the citation. Orders have been issued that contained
false statements and perjury. Both judges ha\}e sanctioned and suborned perjury by
MOTM, Steamboat, and Anderson. Many violations and crimes have been
committed in the process.

160. Upon information and belief, these judges could not act alone in this
wrongdoing. Windsor believes the law clerks of Judge Evans and Judge Duffey
had to be involved. Upon information and belief, Jane Doe 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and John

Doe 1 and 2, law clerks for Judge Evans and Judge Duffey, were involved in
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preparing improper orders used to damage Windsor. Staff in the clerks’ offices
and judges’ staff have clearly been involved.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of Georgia RICO Act — O.C.G.A. 16-14-1 et seq

161. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 160 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

162. The conduct of Defendants violates the Georgia Racketeer Influenced
and Corrupt Organizations Act, O.C.G.A. § 16-14-1 et seq ("Georgia RICO™), as
more fully set forth below.

163. Defendants have engaged in an ongoing pattern of racketeering
activity as defined by O.C.G.A. § 16-14-3.

164. Defendants knowingly devised or participated in a scheme to defraud
Windsor. They did so willingly with an intent to defraud. Defendants used the
U.S. mails and wire for the purpose of executing the scheme. |

165. The activity engaged in by Defendants consists of two or more
predicate acts of racketeering activity, the most recent of which occurred within
four years after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity.

166. The activity engaged in by Defendants had the same or similar

purposes, results, participants, victims, or methods of commission, or is otherwise
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interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated events.

167. O.C.G.A. 16-14-3. "Racketeering activity" means to commit, to
attempt to commit, or to solicit, coerce, or intimidate another person to commit any
crime which is chargeable by indictment under these and other laws of this state:
(xvi) Code Section O.C.G.A. 16-10-94, relaﬁng to Tampering with Evidence;
{(xxix) Any conduct defined as "racketeering activity" under 18 U.S.C. § 1961
(1)(A), (B), (C), and (D). "Racketeering activity” shall also mean any act or threat
involving obstruction of justice.

168, The racketeering activity of Defendants includes a pattern of
Obstruction of Justice; Tampering with Evidence pursuant to O.C.G.A. 16-10-94;
Perjury — Violation of O.C.G.A. 16-10-70; Subornation of Perjury — Violation of
0.C.G.A. 16-10-72, and O.C.G.A.16-10-93; Theft by Deception - O.C.G.A.16-8-3.

169. Defendants have committed numerous violations of predicate acts as
part of the pattern of racketeering activity. Defendants have denied Windsor’s
Constitutional rights so as to obstruct justice. Defendant judges have ignored the
facts, ignored the law, cited erroneous case law, cited case law that does not
support the subject of the citation. Orders have been issued that contained false
statements and perjury. Judges have sanctioned and subomed perjury by MOTM,

Steamboat, and Anderson. This has been done to obstruct justice. Defendants
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have denied Windsor’s access to the courts to obstruct justice. Judge Dubina and
Judge Julie Carnes ignored the wrongdoing of Judge Evans and Judge Duffey to
sanction obstruction of justice. The BOGUS ACTION was manufactured to
obstruct justice and damage Windsor. Documents and evidence presented to Mr.
Hatten’s office and Mr. Ley’s office have intentionally disappeared —n tampering
with evidence. Upon information and belief, documents and evidence have been
tampered with. Upon information and belief, docket entries have been entered and
changed to obstruct justice. A judgment and writ of execution were entered to
obstruct justice and damage Windsor. Windsor has been repeatedly denied
subpoenas to obstruct justice. Windsor has been denied the ability to obtain
testimony from others so as to obstruct justice. Mr. Hatten and Mr. Ley have
ignored communications from Windsor 50 as to obstruct justice. Windsor has been
denied copies of his court records so as to obstruct justice. A variety of actions
have been taken by defendants to obstruct justice and shield Judge Evans and
Judge Duffey from potential indictment and impeachment. Judges have committed
perjury. Documents have been concealed to obstruct justice. Laws and rules have
been violated to obstruct justice. Orders have been issued to obstruct justice.
Valid motions have been denied to obstruct justice. The right to file motions has

been denied to obstruct justice. Windsor has been denied the ability to serve as an
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agent for his wife pursuant to a power of attorney to obstruct justice. Windsor has
been libeled to obstruct justice. Judges have refused to recuse themselves to
obstruct justice. Judge Duffey falsely claimed documents were not provided to
him so he could obstruct justice and damage Windsor. Judges have claimed
Windsor’s appeals have been frivolous to obstruct justice. Judges have not
properly handled various filings to obstruct justice. Judges ignore emergency
motions to obstruct justice. The appeals of Windsor and BGW are not processed
promptly or at all to obstruct justice. Judge Duffey issued an order to compel to
obstruct justice and damage Windsor. Defendants have failed to file civil actions
presented by Windsor for filing in order to obstruct justice. Mr. Hatten's staff has
given false information to Windsor to obstruct justice. Judges have issued various
orders to obstruct justice. Judge Duffey and Judge Evans have refused to honor
case law that established binding precedents on what happens when an appeal is
filed; this has been done to obstruct justice. Mr. Hatten and/or his st;;xff have taken
money from Windsor and BGW for services and have failed to provide the
services. BGW’s filings have been held for as long as 68 days to obstruct justice.
Judge Duffey is accusing Windsor of violating court orders, committing forgery,
and committing the unauthorized practice of law for the purpose of damaging

Windsor and to obstruct justice. It is possible that one or more of the Defendants
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may be attempting to have Windsor killed to obstruct justice. Someone has
directed Mr. Hatten and his staff and Mr. Ley and his staff to commit various acts
that violate Windsor’s rights and obstruct justice.

170. The "pattern of racketeering activity" consisted of many incidents of
racketeering activity that have the same or similar intents, results, accomplices,
victims, and methods of commission and are interrelated by distinguishing
characteristics.

171. The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the
same or similar methods of commission in that they involve the various aspects of
committing fraud in legal matters, including obstruction of justice, perjury, false
statements in orders, improper claims of law and case law, and more.

172. The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the
same or similar objective: commit fraud upon the courts and upon Windsor and his
wife.

173. The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants have the
same or similar victims, including William M. Windsor, Barbara G. Windsor,
Alcatraz Media, LLC, and Alcatraz Media, Inc. Upon information and belief, the
acts of racketeering activity have affected others who have been parties to civil

actions in the N.D.Ga. and the Eleventh Circuit, including, upon information and
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| belief, James Steadman, Janet McDonald, and Jeff Goolsby.

174. The acts of racketeering activity committed by Defendants are
otherwise related by distinguishing characteristics including, but not limited to, the
involvement of obstruction of justice.

175. The racketeering acts are related. The racketeering acts have the same
or similar purposes, results, participants, victims, and/or methods of commission
and are otherwise interrelated by distinguishing characteristics and are not isolated
events.

176. Defendants’ acts of racketeering activity involve a distinct threat of
long-term racketeering activity.

177. This activity has continued for years, is ongoing at the present time,
and will continue into the future with a threat of repetition unless halted by judicial
intervention.

178. Defendants’ actions appear to be part of a regular way of conducting
business.

179. Defendants were aware of the general existence and nature of the
enterprise, that it extended beyond eéch person’s individual role, and with that
awareness participated in, aided, or furthered the enterprise’s activities or had an

ownership interest in the enterprise.

49



Case 1:11-cv-01923-TWT Document 1-1 Filed 06/13/11 Page 49 of 61

130. Each Defendant has participated in the operaticn and/or management
of the affairs of an enterprise.

181. The actions of the judges in engaging in the conspiracy are not part of
a function normally performed by a judge, and thus are non-judicial. Judges do not
have immunity for non-judicial acts.

182. The association of Defendants constitutes an enterprise. The
enterprise is composed of groups of individuals and entities associated in fact
although not a legal entity.

183. The enterprise was established and maintained for the purpose of
committing illegal acts.

184. Defendants’ violations of the Georgia RICO Act proximately have
caused Windsor to suffer injury to his property.

185. Windsor has been injured by reason of Defendants’ violation of
0.C.G.A. 16-14-4(a) and is entitled to recover three times the actual damages
sustained and his costs of suit including reasonable attorneys’ fees, filing fees,'
court reporter costs, printing, mailing, shipping, legal research, and miscellaneous
expenses.

186. In addition, Defendants’ actions showed willful misconduct, malice,

fraud, wantonness, oppression and an entire want of care that raises the
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presumption of conscious indifference to consequences and specific intent to cause
harm, entitling Windsor to receive punitive damages sufficient to deter, penalize,
or punish Defendants in light of the circumstances of the case.

187. Under O.C.G.A. § 51-12-5.1(b), punitive damages may be awarded in
such tort actions in which it is proven by clear and convincing evidence that
Defendants’ actions showed willful misconduct, malice, fraud, wantonness,
oppression, and that entire want of care which raises the presumption of conscious
indifference to consequences.

188. Windsor is also an aggrieved person within the meaning of O.C.G.A.
§ 16-14-6(b). As a result, Windsor is entitled to appropriate preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief.

189. Pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 16-14-6(a), Windsor asks this Court to issue
appropriate orders and judgment requiring Defendants to cease their illegal
conduct and impose reasonable restrictions upon Defendants’ future activities
sufficient to prohibit future violations of the law,

190. Defendants’ violations of the Georgia RICO Act were intended to and
did in fact subvert the legal and judicial process in MIST-1, the BOGUS ACTION,

and MIST-2.
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191. The tortious conduct of Defendants demonstrated an indifference to
and a reckless disregard for Windsor. The conduct involved repeated actions. The
harm was the result of intentional malice, trickery, and deceit.

192. Defendants are guilty of violation of the Georgia RICO Act.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Fraud

193. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 192 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

194, Defendants HAVE intentionally misstated material facts and omitted
material facts. They knew their statements were false, or they had a reckless
disregard for the truth.

195. The Defendants committed fraud.

196. The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Congspiracy

197. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 196 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.
168. Upon information and belief, Defendants reached agreement to

commit overt acts and undertake a variety of actions designed to damage the
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Plaintiff.

199. Upon information and belief, Defendants were knowing-participants
in the conspiracy, had knowledge of the relevant circumstances and of the
agreement made.

200. Upon information and beli‘ef, Defendants, in some way or manner,
came to a mutual understanding to try to accomplish this common and unlawful
plan; these defendants, knowing the unlawful purpose of the plan, willfully joined
in it; during the existence of the conspiracy, at least one of the defendants
knowingly committed at least two of the overt acts.

201. The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Breach of Legal Duty - O.C.G.A. 51-1-6

202. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 201 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set foﬁh in full,

203. 0O.C.G.A. 51-1-6 permits damages when no cause of action is given in
express terms. This allows the Plaintiff to allege a private cause of action:for
violation of criminal statutes and misconduct referenced above.

204. Defendants breached their legal duties.

205. The Plaintiff was damaged as a result.
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FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

VIOLATION OF LAWS AND RULES PERTAINING TO JUDGMENTS

206. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 205 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

207. Georgia law applies relative to notice of appeal, supersedeas, and stay
pertaining to judgments issued.

208. Mr. Hatten and the Clerk of the District Court violated Georgia law by
issuing a judgment and a Writ of Execution, to enable liens to be illegally placed
liens on Windsor’s assets and his wife’s assets. This has wrongfully damaged the
Windsor’s credit.

209. This enabled the Plaintiffs in the BOGUS ACTION to illegally placed
liens on Windsor’s assets and his wife's assets. This has wrongfully damaged The
Windsor's cfedit. Judge Duffey allowed this wrongdoing to take place and did
nothing to correct it. He did not even file some of Windsor’s motions that were
submitted to deal with this issue. |

210. Someone in the Clerk’s office at the United States District Court for
the Northern District of Georgia allowed the judgment and writ to be illegally
issued.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
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Abuse Of Process

211. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 210 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

212. Common law abuse of process is the use of the legal system for the
improper and ulterior motive of halting Windsor’s efforts to report and obtain
action on corrupt and criminal acts, with the knowledge that important interests of
every U.S. citizen would be adversely affected. The legal and judicial systems
have been grossly abused to damage Windsor and shield judges from conviction
and disbarment. There has been a perversion of the process. Windsor has been so
abused that he has had to spend a fortune and devote most of his time in seeking
justice.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of Constitutional Rights

213. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 212 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

214. The Defendants had a Constitutional duty to Windsor. The Defendants
breached their Constitutional duties to Windsor through action and inaction.

215. The action and inaction of the Defendants in violating Windsor's

Constitutional rights under color of law caused damage to Windsor.
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216. The due process clauses of both the Georgia and the United States
Constitutions guarantee a party an impartial and disinterested tribunal in civil

cases, but Windsor has been denied an impartial judge.

217. Defendants have violated Windsor’s rights under the First

Amendment, Fourth Amendment, Fifth Amendment, Ninth Amendment, and
Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

218. Defendants have violated ARTICLE I SECTION I of the BILL OF

RIGHTS of the Georgia Constitution, Paragraphs I, I, V, and IX.
EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
New Law

219. The allegations in paragraphs 42 through 218 above are incorporated
herein by reference as if set forth in full.

220. Windsor must also argue for extending, modifying, or reversing
existing law or for establishing new law. The whole idea of justice requires
fairness, honesty, impartial judges. While it may be unusual to bring an action
against federal judicial employees in Superior Court, the citizens of Georgia must
have some means for corruption such as this to be dealt with so those involved may
be held accountable. The federal court system in Fulton County is corrupt and
cannot be expected to police itself.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, there being no adequate remedy at law, Windsor prays for

judgment in favor of Windsor and against the Defendants as follows:

DECLARATORY RELIEF
221. Declare that a writ of execution was illegally filed in Fulton County.
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

222. Unless Defendants are enjoined from certain acts, Windsor will
continue to suffer immediate and irreparable harm. The harm suffered by Windsor
far exceeds any inconvenience that would be caused on these defendants. The
equities clearly balance in Windsor’s favor. Windsor has no adequate remedy at
law.

223. Windsor is entitled to a Temporary Restraining Order, interfocutory,
and permanent injunctive relief:

a. that Defendants be temporarily RESTRAINED and preliminarily
and permanently enjoined from issuing Writs of Execution in Georgia
without proper issuance and notice of judgments.

b. that Defendant Judge William S. Duffey be temporarily
RESTRAINED and preliminarily and permanently enjoined from

further actions in Civil Action 1:09-CV-01543-WSD, Civil Action
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No. 1:09-CV-02027-WSD, or any other matter involving Windsor that
violate the law and Windsor’s rights, pending further order of the
Court; |

c. that the Defendants be temporarily RESTRAINED and
preliminarily and permanently enjoined from prohibiting any access to
the courts by William M. Windsor or anyone working with him or on
his behalf and are RESTRAINED from enforcing any injunctions or
filing restrictions issued in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Georgia or the United States Court of Appeals for
the Eleventh Circuit, pending further order of the Court;

d. that all Defendants be hereby temporarily RESTRAINED and
preliminarily and permanently enjoined from destroying any evidence
or erasing or modifying any information on aﬁy computers relevant in
any way to the Plaintiff, Alcatraz Media, LLC, Alcatraz Media, Inc.,
or any of the Defendants related to Civil Action No. 1:06-CV-0714-
ODE, Civil Action No. 1:09-CV-01543-WSD, or Civil Action No.
1:09-CV-02027-WSD in the United States District Court for the

Northern District of Georgia, pending further order of the Court;
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e. that the Defendants shall be prohibited from engaging in the same
type of endeavor as the enterprise in which engaged in violation of
Code Section 16-14-4; and

f. that the enterprise be dissolved.

224, Windsor is an aggrieved person within the méaning of 0.C.G.A. §
16-14-6(b). As a result, Windsor is entitled to appropriate preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief.

COMPENSATORY DAMAGES

225. Windsor should recover actual damages from the Defendants, the
amount of which is still accruing.

PUNITIVE DAMAGES

226. The Defendants’ conduct as described above is willful, wanton,
wicked, intentional, and malicious resulting from fraud, insult, and malice, and it is
associated with aggravating circumstances, including willfulness, wantonness,
malice, oppression, outrageous conduct, insult, and fraud, thus warranting
Windsor’s recovery of punitive damages from the Defendants, to be determined by
the trier of fact. O.C.G.A. 51-12-5.1 authorizes punitive dammages. Windsor
should receive an award of punitive damages.

EXPENSES OF LITIGATION
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227. The Defendants have acted in bad faith and have caused Windsor
unnecessary trouble and expense, justifying an award of expenses of litigation
from the Defendants, in an amount to be proven at trial. Windsor is entitled to an
award of attorneys’ fees pursuant to O.C.G.A. 13-6-11. Since punitive damages
are appropriate, counsel fees, paralegal fees, deposition costs, and litigation fees
can be taken into consideration when estimating the foregoing punitive damages.
Windsor prays that he be awarded expenses of litigation. -

This 20th day of May, 2011.

Ol e (1)

WILLIAM M. WINDSOR
- Pro Se

PO Box 681236

Marietta, GA 30068

Telephone: 770-578-1094

Facsimile: 770-234-4106

Email: williamwindsor@belisouth.net
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Windsor hereby demands a trial by jury.

This 20th day of May, 2011.

(i (Ul

WILLIAM M. WINDSOR
Pro Se

PO Box 681236

Marietta, GA. 30068

Telephone: 770-578-1094

Facsimile: 770-234-4106

Email: williamwindsor@bellsouth.net
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YERIFICATION OF WILLIAM M, WINDSOR

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned Notary Public duly
authorized to administer oaths, William M. Windsor, who after being duly sworn
deposes and states that he is authorized to make this verification on behalf of
himself and that the facts alleged in the foregoing VERIFIED COMPLAINT are
true and correct based upon his personal knowledge, except as to the matters herein
stated to be alleged on information and belief, and that as to those matters he
believes them to be true.

In accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, [ declare under penalty of perjury that
the foregoing is true and correct based upon my personal knowledge.

This 20th day of May, 2011,

William M. Windsor

~ Sworn and subscribed before me this 20th day of May, 201 1.
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